
PUBLIC NOTICE
Chair Appointed Members
ERIC SCHERTZING REBECCA BAHAR-COOK, Treasurer

Vice-Chair DEB NOLAN, Secretary
BRIAN McGRAIN DEBBIE DE LEON

Ingham County Land Bank Fast Track Authority
422 Adams Street, Lansing Michigan 48906 517.267.5221 Fax 517.267.5224

THE INGHAM COUNTY LAND BANK FAST TRACK AUTHORITY WILL MEET ON
MONDAY, AUGUST 6, 2012 AT 5:00 P.M., IN THE PERSONNEL CONFERENCE
ROOM (D&E), HUMAN SERVICES BUILDING, 5303 S. CEDAR, LANSING

Agenda
Call to Order
Approval of Minutes – July 9, 2012
Additions to the Agenda
Limited Public Comment – 3 minutes per person

1. Community Projects Update

2. Resolution to Authorize the Chair to Execute the Offer to Purchase for 600 E. Michigan,
Lansing from Gillespie Development, LLC

3. Resolution to Approve the General Contractor Policy and Guideline Manual
3a. Contractor (Vendor) Application Process – Linda Schonberg

4. Property maintenance, renovation & development
a. Residential Property Update-Dashboard
b. Commercial Property Update
c. PROP Update
d. Garden Program
e. Vacant Lot Update
f. General legal update- Counsel

5. Accounts Payable & Monthly Statement
a. Accounts Payable Approval – July 2012
b. Monthly Statement – June 2012

6. Chairman & Executive Director Comments

Announcements
Public Comment – 3 minutes per person
Adjournment

PLEASE TURN OFF CELL PHONES OR OTHER ELECTRONIC
DEVICES OR SET TO MUTE OR VIBRATE TO AVOID

DISRUPTION DURING THE MEETING



Page 1 of 5

INGHAM COUNTY LAND BANK
FAST TRACK AUTHORITY

July 9, 2012
Minutes

Members Present: Eric Schertzing, Comm. Nolan, Comm. McGrain, Comm. Bahar-
Cook, Comm. DeLeon

Members Absent: None

Others Present: Mary Ruttan, Tim Perrone, Joe Bonsall, Sandy Gower, Dan Van
Acker

The meeting was called to order by Chairperson Schertzing at 5:00 p.m. Conference
Room D & E of the Human Services Building, 5303 S. Cedar, Lansing.

Approval of the June 4, 2012 Minutes

MOVED BY COMM. NOLAN, SUPPORTED BY COMM. MCGRAIN, TO APPROVE
THE JUNE 4, 2012 MINUTES. MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY. Absent: Comm.
DeLeon

Additions to the Agenda: None

Limited Public Comment: None

1. Community Projects Update

Chairperson Schertzing stated no one was scheduled to address the board about a
community project. He asked the board to recommend to staff any groups they would
like to hear from.

2. Resolution to Authorize & Execute the Option to Purchase for 600 E Michigan,
Lansing

MOVED BY COMM. NOLAN, SUPPORTED BY COMM. BAHAR-COOK, TO ADOPT
THE RESOLUTION TO AUTHORIZE & EXECUTE THE OPTION TO PURCHASE FOR
600 E MICHIGAN, LANSING.



Page 2 of 5

Executive Director Ruttan reminded the board that Pat Gillespie had made a
presentation on this property at the last meeting. This is an Option to Purchase
Agreement for the same project and price and the roles of both parties. Comm. Nolan
felt the option fee was too generous and that a right of first refusal would be more
appropriate than the option to purchase. Chairperson Schertzing stated the option fee
amounts to 1.5% of the purchase price and was not out of line with industry standards.
He also stated the purchase option provides the sight control necessary for a buyer to
negotiate other aspects of the project in good faith, which you do not get with a right of
first refusal. Comm. Bahar-Cook asked which party’s idea it was to have the option to
purchase. Executive Director Ruttan stated it was our idea. Comm. Bahar-Cook stated
she would prefer to see a shorter period for the option and then a longer right of first
refusal period. Chairperson Schertzing stated the longer option period allows time for
the developer to do all the necessary governmental processes at the local level. Comm.
Nolan requested the additional 6 month extension be removed. Comms. McGrain and
Bahar-Cook agree. Comm. Nolan noted the Land Bank would still be liable for the
physical structure. Chairperson Schertzing stated staff is exploring options for removing
the above ground structure and leaving the underground infrastructure for the future
developer to handle. Comm. McGrain inquired if title insurance and survey work were
typically seller costs? Executive Director Ruttan stated they were.

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY. Absent: Comm. DeLeon

4. Resolution to Authorize & Execute the Offer to Purchase for 1300 Keystone,
Lansing

Comm. Bahar-Cook requested agenda item 4 be taken up next to accommodate Mr.
Van Acker’s presence.

MOVED BY COMM. MCGRAIN, SUPPORTED BY COMM. NOLAN, TO ADOPT THE
RESOLUTION TO AUTHORIZE & EXECUTE THE OFFER TO PURCHASE FOR 1300
KEYSTONE, LANSING.

Chairperson Schertzing introduced Dan Van Acker from DJV Properties, LLC. Mr. Van
Acker distributed a handout highlighting his business experience to the board and
provided background on his company. He stated he was presenting a full-price, cash
offer and that he was prepared to close within seven days. Comm. McGrain asked if Mr.
Van Acker had a tenant in mind. Mr. Van Acker responded that he specializes in
providing incubatory space for new business startups and that he has three interested
parties. Comm. McGrain inquired if Mr. Van Acker and his company were current of
their property takes. Mr. Van Acker responded in the affirmative. Chairperson
Schertzing asked Mr. Van Acker for an estimate of the taxable value when the project
was completed. Mr. Van Acker expects the taxable value to be approximately twice the
purchase price.

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY. Absent: Comm. DeLeon



Page 3 of 5

3. Resolution Approving the Agreement of Payment of Debt Services and
Authorizing the Chairperson and Secretary to Execute the Agreement

MOVED BY COMM. MCGRAIN, SUPPORTED BY COMM. NOLAN, TO ADOPT THE
RESOLUTION APPROVING THE AGREEMENT OF PAYMENT OF DEBT SERVICES
AND AUTHORIZING THE CHAIRPERSON AND SECRETARY TO EXECUTE THE
AGREEMENT.

Chairperson Schertzing stated this is a companion resolution to one passed by the
Brownfield Authority. The resolution allows the Land Bank to recoup the debt payments
advanced on behalf of the Brownfield Authority. Comm. Bahar-Cook asked when we
expect there to be a surplus allowing for payments to the Land Bank.

Comm. DeLeon arrived at 5:35 p.m.

Chairperson Schertzing stated a surplus was expected in 2014.

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY.

5. 2012 Tax Foreclosure List

Chairperson Schertzing stated the Land Bank is purchasing eleven properties for NSP2.
The County Treasurer will be holding open houses on select auction properties next
week. The auction is scheduled for July 24th. Additionally, discussions have taken place
with the City of Leslie and LEAP for possible development of the Race Street parcels.

6. Property Maintenance, Renovation & Development
6a. Residential Property Update

Chairperson Schertzing stated the Dashboard was included in the meeting packet. This
year’s 31st closing is scheduled for July 10.

6b. Commercial Property Update

Chairperson Schertzing stated this was covered in items 2 and 4. Additionally, Art
Attack will be held on the DeLuxe Inn site on September 8th.

6c. PROP Update

Chairperson Schertzing stated PROP continues to be evaluated. There are currently 3
properties in the program and 400 S Fairview is going to be added. He stated Chris
Kolbe has a showing scheduled for tomorrow.

6d. Garden Program



Page 4 of 5

Chairperson Schertzing said the Garden Program is praying for rain. The new Webster
Farm currently has 95 individual plots, including one tended by the buyer of our new
construction on Hughes Rd.

6e. Vacant Lot Update

Chairperson Schertzing stated Jasper Priest was coming up with a marketing plan for
the non-NSP vacant parcels. Executive Director Ruttan informed the board she would
be attending a HUD training session later in the week where she plans to ask about the
disposition of vacant NSP2 parcels.

6f. General Legal Update – Counsel

Tim Perrone informed the board that Stacy Lynch intends to reaffirm her land contract.
A bankruptcy creditors meeting will be held in the near future. He stated a settlement
offer has been made between RKH and Platinum Drywall. RKH will indemnify the Land
Bank, as necessary, pursuant to the land contract. Mr. Perrone stated another letter has
been received from Grace at Home. He and staff will be meeting next week to discuss
how to proceed, though he feels the facts of the dispute remain unchanged. Comm.
McGrain requested that vendor recruitment be presented at a future board meeting.

7. Accounts Payable & Monthly Statement
7a. Accounts Payable Approval – June 2012

MOVED BY COMM. BAHAR-COOK, SUPPORTED BY COMM. MCGRAIN TO
APPROVE THE ACCOUNTS PAYABLE FOR JUNE 2012. MOTION CARRIED
UNANIMOUSLY.

4b. Monthly Statement – May 2012

The May 2012 monthly financial statement was received and placed on file.

8. 2011 Audit

MOVED BY COMM. MCGRAIN, SUPPORTED BY COMM. BAHAR-COOK TO
ACCEPT THE 2011 AUDIT.

Comm. Nolan asked if the Land Bank has always used Rehmann Robson for its audits.
Executive Director Ruttan stated we have. Comm. Nolan asked if the Land Bank goes
out for bids on audit services. Chairperson Schertzing stated the Land Bank, as a
component part of the county, utilizes the same vendor selected under County
procurement.

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY.



Page 5 of 5

9. Chairman & Executive Director Comments

Executive Director Ruttan stated the Land Bank would be hosting a series of Open
Houses on July 14th. Jasper Priest has distributed flyers throughout the neighborhoods
in preparation.

Announcements: None

Limited Public Comment:

Sandy Gower updated the board on the outcome of the Tri-County’s unsuccessful EPA
grant application.

The meeting adjourned at 6:15 p.m.

Respectfully submitted,

Joseph Bonsall



INGHAM COUNTY LAND BANK AUTHORITY

RESOLUTION TO AUTHORIZE THE CHAIRMAN TO EXECUTE THE OFFER TO PURCHASE
THE PROPERTY AT 600 E. MICHIGAN AVENUE, LANSING, MICHIGAN, RECEIVED FROM
GILLESPIE DEVELOPMENT, LLC

RESOLUTION #12-14

WHEREAS, the Land Bank Fast Track Act, 2003 PA 258, being MCL 124.751 et seq., (Athe Act@)
establishes the State Land Bank Fast Track Authority; and

WHEREAS, the Act allows a foreclosing governmental unit, such as the Ingham County
Treasurer, to enter into an intergovernmental agreement with the State Land Bank Fast Track
Authority providing for the exercise of the powers, duties, functions, and responsibilities of an
authority under the Act, and for the creation of a County Land Bank Fast Track Authority (the
“Authority”) to exercise those functions; and

WHEREAS, the Ingham County Treasurer, with Ingham County Board of Commissioners
approval, has entered into such an intergovernmental agreement under the Act; and

WHEREAS, the Ingham County Land Bank Fast Track Authority received title to the commercial
property located at 600 E. Michigan Avenue, Lansing in July of 2011 through tax foreclosure;
and

WHEREAS, this building is a former contaminated Mobil Gas station located on corner of Larch
and Michigan Avenue in Lansing; and

WHEREAS, the Department of Environmental Quality indicated there are four 10,000 gallon
underground tanks on the site; and

WHEREAS, the proposed development is a three or four story building with approximately 30-40
residential for rent apartment units; and

WHEREAS, the property had an appraised value in 2011 of $60,000, and

WHEREAS, the sale of this property will create several new construction employment
opportunities and return the property to the tax roll; and

WHEREAS, the Ingham County Land Bank Fast Track Authority has policies, procedures and
administrative rules regarding the disposition of commercial property and all transfer of non-
residential property must have board approval;

THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Authority authorizes the Land Bank Chairman to
execute the Offer to Purchase the property at 600 E. Michigan Avenue, Lansing received from
Gillespie Development, LLC.

AYE: NAY: ABSENT



BUY/SELL AGREEMENT

THIS AGREEMENT made this _____ day of ________, 2012, by and between Gillespie
Development, LLC (hereinafter referred to as the "Purchaser"), of 330 Marshall Street, Suite 100,
Lansing, MI 48912, and Ingham County Land Bank Fast Track Authority, a Michigan public authority ,
of 422 Adams St., Lansing, MI 48906 (hereinafter referred to as the "Seller").

WHEREAS, Seller desires to sell certain real estate described in paragraph 1 below (hereinafter
referred to as the "Property") to Purchaser;

WHEREAS, Purchaser desires to purchase the Property described below; and,

NOW, THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows:

1. Purchase. Seller agrees to convey, transfer, sell and assign to Purchaser, all right, title
and interest in the Property commonly described as 600 E. Michigan Avenue, Lansing,
Michigan and legally described as the West 18 feet of lot 13, also lots 14, 15, 16, 17,18,19 of
Connards Sub of Lot 1, Block 242. Thereof for highway purposes including all buildings,
equipment, fixtures, improvements, appurtenances, beneficial easements, drives, ways of
ingress and egress.

2. Purchase Price. The purchase price for the Property shall be Sixty Thousand and no/100 Dollars
($60,000.00). At closing Purchaser shall tender the sum of $60,000.00, less any closing credits (the
“Purchase Price”);

3. Warranties and Representations.

(a) Ownership. At closing Seller will convey good and marketable title to the Property by
warranty deed to the Purchaser, or its Assignee, for the Property.

(b) Intentionally Omitted..

(c) Latent Defects. Seller represents and warrants that it has no knowledge of any latent defects
relating to the Property that have not been disclosed to Purchaser.

(d) Intentionally Omitted.

(e) Possession. Seller will deliver to Purchaser possession of the Property at closing. There are
no Tenants of the Property.

(f) Absence of Litigation. Seller represents and warrants that no litigation, administrative
procedure, or administrative investigation has been commenced or threatened against the
Property or any party hereto, challenging or seeking to enjoin or interfering with the
consummation of the sale as set forth in this Agreement, or seeking to impose any liabilities or
obligations on the Purchaser which have not been specifically disclosed and assumed in
writing by the Purchaser.

(g) Environmental Matters. Seller shall provide any and all environmental reports it has in its
possession upon the full execution of this agreement. It is further agreed to and understood by
the parties that due the prior use of the property, Environmental Hazards are likely to exisit



which will require both parties to further investigate. Such investigation may lead to
additional work to remediate any and all possible environmental issues that may exist
pursuant to the reports. Seller and Purchaser agree to work together and determine the best
course of action to alleviate the potential environmental issues. (h) Seller shall
continue to operate the Property in the ordinary course of business and maintain the Property
in its current condition during the interim period between the acceptance of this Agreement
and the Closing Date.

(i) Seller represents and warrants that the performance of the obligations of the Seller under this
Agreement will not violate any contract, ordinance, judicial or administrative order, or
judgment applicable to the Seller or the Property.

(j) Intentionally Omitted.

(k) Seller represents and warrants that there are no special assessments currently existing with
respect to the Property nor is there an option to purchase, right of refusal to purchase or
agreement for the sale and purchase of all or any portion of the Property to any person or
entity other than Purchaser.

(l) Seller is not a “foreign person” as defined in Section 1445(f)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code
of 1986 and regulations promulgated thereunder, and Seller will furnish to Purchaser, at
Closing, an appropriate affidavit to this effect.

(m) No work has been performed or is in process or contemplated at the Property, and no
materials have been or are to be furnished to the Property which might provide the basis for
mechanics’ and/or materialmen’s liens, construction liens, or other liens against all or any
portion of the Property.

(n) There is no pending or threatened litigation, condemnation, eminent domain or administrative
proceeding, or real estate tax protest, proceeding or assessment against or affecting all or any
portion of the Property or the widening of any streets abutting the Property and, to the best of
Seller’s knowledge, no such proceedings or assessments are contemplated by any
governmental authority.

(o) All information furnished to Purchaser by Seller in connection with the Property is complete
and correct to the best of Seller’s knowledge and Seller has not failed to disclose any
information of which it has knowledge which is material to the Property, the physical
condition thereof or Purchaser’s intended use thereof.

(p) The Seller shall cooperate with Purchaser’s efforts to obtain all necessary approvals and
permits required for Purchaser’s intended development of the Property, including, without
limitation, (i) furnish evidence of ownership; (ii) appear at site plan approval or any other
permit hearings or proceedings as requested by Purchaser; (iii) execute applications, petitions
or other documents necessary for rezoning or special land use, tentative preliminary plan
approval, final site plan approval and such other applications for governmental approvals,
permits and authorizations which Purchaser determines are necessary to develop the Property;
and (iv) not hinder or object to the development as proposed by Purchaser.

(q) Seller represents warrants and covenants to the Purchaser that the undersigned is the sole
owner of good and marketable fee simple title to the Property and has full power, capacity and
legal right to execute and deliver this Agreement and sell the Property to the Purchaser



pursuant to the terms of this Agreement. The Property is not subject to any unrecorded liens
or encumbrances. At all times prior to Closing, the Seller shall not without Purchaser’s
consent grant or permit any easements, liens, mortgages, encumbrances or other interests with
respect to the Property unless same can be paid and discharged at Closing out of Closing
proceeds.

(r) Seller has not received any notice nor does it have knowledge of any violation by Seller or the
Property of any laws, zoning ordinances or regulations affecting the Property.

(s) Seller will use it’s best faith efforts to formulate a brownfield plan, administered by the
Ingham County Land Bank which shall assist in reimbursing the Purchaser (or the Developer
of the Property) for reimbursable eligible expenses under the Plan for redevelopment and
construction of the Property, including but not limited to the cost of a land survey, a Phase I
ESA, additional environmental investigation if necessary, geotechnical investigation and other
qualified ane eligible expenses.; In the event a brownfield plan will not be supported by the
Ingham County Land Bak, Purchaser may, at is sole option and discretion, terminate this
agreement.

The foregoing representations and warranties shall be continuing and shall be true and accurate on and
as of the Closing Date with the same force and effect as if on that date made, and all of such
representations and warranties shall survive the Closing and shall not be affected by any investigation,
verification or approval by any party hereto or by anyone on behalf of any party hereto.

4. Title Insurance. Seller, at its sole costs and expense, shall provide Purchaser at closing with an
owner's policy of title insurance, without standard exceptions, covering the Property in the amount of
the purchase price.

(a) Title Commitment. After the last party signs this Agreement, Seller shall cause to be
issued and delivered to Purchaser a commitment (hereinafter referred to as the
"Commitment"), for an owner's policy of title insurance without standard exceptions
(hereinafter referred to as the "Title Policy"), to be issued at closing by Capital Fund Title
Service in the full amount of the purchase price. The Seller shall pay the premium for the
Title Policy at or before closing.

(b) Objections To Title. The Purchaser shall have thirty (30) days from the date it
receives the Commitment to notify Seller in writing of Purchaser's objections to any
exceptions, other than permitted exceptions. If Purchaser objects to Seller's title as disclosed
by the Commitment within the time and in the manner required by this section, Seller shall
have fifteen (15) days after receiving written notice of the particular defect(s) claimed either;
(1) to remedy the Title Policy to the satisfaction of the Purchaser, or (2) to obtain a
Commitment for title insurance "insuring over" the defect(s) in title. If Seller fails or refuses
to remedy the defect(s), or obtain a Commitment for title insurance "insuring over" the
defect(s) in title, then Purchaser may elect to either proceed to closing, taking title subject to
the defect(s) without reduction of the purchase price, or to instruct the Title Company to
return the deposit to the Purchaser in full termination of this Agreement and thereafter neither
party shall have any further rights or obligations under this Agreement.

(c) Current Survey. Seller shall provide any existing survey it may have in its possession.
At Purchaser’s election, Purchaser may obtain, at Purchaser's expense, a current surveyof the
Property. If the survey discloses any Exceptions (other than Permitted Exceptions) which will
materially and adversely affect Purchaser's intended use of the Property, Purchaser mayobject



to such Exceptions by following the procedures set forth in section 4(b) above. Seller shall
have the ability to remedy the defect(s) in the same manner provided in section 4(b) above,
and with the same consequences. Within 2 days of the effective date of this Agreement, Seller
shall provide Purchaser with a copy of all existing surveys in Seller’s possession.

(d) Permitted Exceptions. Subject to Purchaser's rights under sections 4(b) and 4(c)
above, the Property shall be conveyed to Purchaser subject only to the following Exceptions,
all of which shall be "Permitted Exceptions":

(i) Those Exceptions which are affirmatively approved by the Purchaser in writing;

(ii) Those Exceptions which the title insurer will "insure over" with affirmative
coverage acceptable to Purchaser;

(iii) Easements for water, sanitary sewer, storm sewer, electricity, telephone, and
other utility purposes, if any, which do not interfere with Purchaser's intended use of
the Property; and

(iv) Real estate taxes subject to the tax proration provisions of this Agreement.

5. Property Taxes and Other Prorations. Taxes will be treated as if they cover the calendar year in
which they are first billed. Taxes first billed in years prior to the year of closing will be paid by
Seller without pro-ration. Taxes which are first billed in the year of closing will be pro-rated so
that Seller will pay taxes from the first of the year to the closing date and Purchaser will pay taxes
for the balance of the year, including the day of closing. If any bill for taxes is not issued as the
date of closing, the then current taxable value and tax rate and any administrative fee will
substituted and pro-rated, the provisions of Michigan Public Act 80 of 1994 being waived

Special Assessments that are or become a lien on the Property on or before date of Closing of this
Agreement shall be paid by Seller.

6. Conditions Precedent to Closing. Purchaser shall have tweleve (12) months in which to perform such
due diligence and conduct such investigations as the Purchaser deems necessary in order to determine
whether the property is suitable for Purchaser’s intended use (“Due Diligence Period”). Purchaser
may for any reason at any time prior to the expiration of the Due Diligence Period cancel this
Agreement upon written notice to Seller. Upon such termination, neither party shall have any further
obligation to each other. In addition, and not by way of limitation, Purchaser’s obligation to close is
also contingent upon the following:

(a) Transfer of Assets. All actions, proceedings, instruments and documents necessary or
appropriate to consummate the transactions contemplated by this Agreement or incidental
thereto, and all other related legal matters, shall have been approved bycounsel for Purchaser.

(b) Performance by Seller. Seller shall have performed and complied with all agreements,
covenants and conditions required by this Agreement to have been performed or complied
with by it prior to or at the time of closing.

(c) Accuracy of Representations and Warranties. The representations and warranties made herein



shall be correct on, and as of, the date of closing with the same force and effect as through
such representations and warranties had been made as of such date.

(d) Validity of Documents. The instruments executed and delivered to Purchaser pursuant to this
Agreement are valid in accordance with their terms, and effectively vest in Purchaser good
and marketable title to the Property free and clear of any liabilities, obligations and
encumbrances, except as referenced above.

(e) Environmental Condition of Property. Seller providing to Purchaser within 2 days of the date
of this Agreement all reports of environmental investigations and engineering studies in its
possession or control related to the Property.

7. Risk of Loss.

(a) Risk of Loss. Until the closing of the transaction contemplated by this Agreement, all risk of
loss relative to the assets being purchased under this Agreement, including, but not necessarily
limited to, all loss occasioned by fire, theft, vandalism, mischief, flood, windstorm, accident,
act of God, or other casualty shall be born by the Seller or existing title holder.

(b) Purchaser's Option. In the event, prior to the closing of the transaction contemplated by this
Agreement, all or any portion of the Property is lost, stolen, vandalized or damaged, Seller
shall notify Purchaser in writing of such occurrence and Purchaser shall have the option to
terminate this Agreement or to consummate this Agreement.

8. Closing. Upon satisfaction or waiver of all contingencies, closing shall take place at the offices of
Capital Fund Title Services, LLC on or before September 15, 2013.

9. Deposit; Default; and Contingency.

(a) Within 5 days from the Effective Date of this Agreement Purchaser shall payt One Thousand
and no/100 Dollars ($1000.00) to the SellerThis payment shall be nonrefundable to the Seller,
however, it shall be applicable to the purchase price at closing.

(b) If Seller fails to meet its obligations hereunder, including closing on or before the above
closing date or extend the closing date as provided by this Agreement, upon demand by
Purchaser, the payment shall be returned to Purchaser and Purchaser may pursue such legal
and equitable remedies that may be available to it. In the alternative, Purchaser may have
specific performance of this Agreement.

(c)

10. Authority. Each party will provide to the other such documentation as reasonably requested which
establishes that each party has the requisite authority to consummate the transactions set forth herein
including, but not necessarily limited to, corporate resolutions, partnership resolutions, certificates of
good standing, certified copies of certificates of co-partnership, and certified copies of partnership
agreements, or if a limited liability company, such similar documentation establishing the party’s
authority.

11. Miscellaneous.



(a) Brokerage Commission. Purchaser and Seller mutually represent to each other that they have
not negotiated with any broker in connection with this Agreement. Each party agrees that
should a claim be made against the other party for a commission from any broker other than
the broker(s) named herein by reason of the acts of such party, the party upon whose acts such
claim is predicated shall hold the other party free and harmless from any and all liability and
expense in connection herewith.

(b) Expenses. Each party hereto shall pay its own expenses incident to the negotiation and
preparation of this Agreement and the consummation of the transaction contemplated hereby;
provided, however, that nothing herein contained shall relieve any partyhereto of any liability
arising from a breach of such party of any provisions of this Agreement.

(c) Assignment. This Agreement shall be binding on and inure to the benefit of all assigns,
successors and representatives of the respective parties hereto. It is acknowledged that
Purchaser has the right to assign its rights under this Agreement at, or before, closing, and that
Purchaser's assignee has the right to rely upon the representations and warranties contained
herein which shall survive closing.

(d) Modifications; Waiver. This Agreement shall not be modified except in writing and signed by
all parties whose rights and/or obligations are to be modified.

(e) Notices. Any notice, request, instruction or other document to be given hereunder by either
party to the other shall be in writing and be delivered personally or sent by certified mail,
return receipt requested to the addresses set forth on the first page of this agreement. Any
notices given by mail shall be deemed to have been given as of the day following the date of
posting.

(f) Entire Agreement. This Agreement, the exhibits attached hereto, the side Agreement between
Seller and Purchaser constitute the entire agreement and understanding between the parties
hereto relating to the sale and purchase of the Property, and it is agreed that any change in,
addition to, or amendment or modification of the terms hereof shall be of no effect unless
reduced to writing and executed by both Purchaser and Seller.

(g) Applicable Law. This Agreement and the transaction contemplated hereunder shall be
construed and interpreted under the laws of the State of Michigan.

(h) Survival of Representations and Warranties. All statements contained in this Agreement, or
in any certificate, or instrument delivered by, or on behalf of, any party pursuant to this
Agreement shall be deemed representations and warranties by the parties making them. All
parties agree that the representations and warranties contained herein shall survive the closing
under this Agreement. This Agreement shall not be merged into any instruments or
documents executed and delivered at the Closing but shall survive the Closing and the
representations and warranties and covenants made herein shall remain in full force and
effect.

(i) Headings. The section headings in this Agreement are for convenience of reference only and
shall not be deemed to alter or affect any provision hereof.

(j) Access to Property. Seller hereby agrees that the Purchaser, or its Assignee, shall have the
right to go upon the Property during the term of this Agreement, for any of the purposes



contemplated by this Agreement, including, but without limitation, for the purposes of taking
samples of the soil and/or groundwater on the Property to be analyzed for any hazardous
materials or substances. Purchaser shall also have the right to go upon the Property and in the
building thereon to market and show the Property to potential tenants or investors. Purchaser
shall indemnify, defend and hold the Seller harmless for any injuries, losses, claims, demands,
causes of action, damages, judgments, fines and expenses of any kind or nature, to any
persons which occur as a result of the entry of the Purchaser, or its Assignee, upon the
Property.

(k) Closing Costs/Seller. It is agreed that Seller shall be responsible for the following closing
costs at prior to closing:

(i) Owner's title insurance policy without standard exceptions;

(ii) State and County transfer taxes and fees on the deed to be given, if any;

(iii) All costs required and necessary to clear title;

(iv) Preparation of deeds;

(v) Seller's Legal Fees;

(vi) One half of the Closing Fees; and

(vii) Any amount owed to the Purchaser, if any, as a result of the real estate proration as
provided in section 5.

(l) Closing Costs/Purchaser. It is agreed that Purchaser shall be responsible for the following
closing costs at or prior to closing:

(i) Any recording fees for recording the warranty deed;

(ii) Any amount owed to a surveyor for the preparation of the survey;

(iii) Any amount owed to Seller, if any, as a result of the real estate tax proration as
provided in section 5;

(iv) Purchaser's legal fees; and

(v) One half of the Closing Fees.

(m) Saturdays, Sundays and Holidays. Whenever in this Agreement it is provided that notice must
be given or an act performed or payment made on a certain date, if such date falls on a
Saturday, Sunday or holiday the date for the notice of performance or payment shall be the
next following business day.

(n) Documents to be Furnished by Seller on Closing Date. On the Closing Date, Seller shall
deliver to Purchaser the following documents, each of which shall be in a form reasonably
satisfactory to Purchaser and its counsel:



(i) A warranty deed to the Property in recordable form conveying fee title and all
available divisions under the Land Division Act.

(ii) An affidavit executed by Seller in form required by the title insurance company to
remove standard exceptions from the Owner’s policy of title insurance to be issued to
Purchaser.

(iii) A certificate of Seller to the effect that all of Seller’s representations and warranties
contained in paragraph 3 are true and correct as of the Closing Date, or stating the
extent, if any, that any such representations and warranties are not then true and
correct;

(iv) A Bill of Sale for personal property being transferred (if any);

(v) An assignment of Seller’s rights under any service contract which are assignable and
which Purchaser determines to assume, along with the original or true copy of each
service contract assigned; and

(vii) Any other documents reasonably requested by Purchaser or Purchaser’s title insurer.

(o) Effective Date:The effective date of this Agreement shall be the later of the dates this
Agreement is signed by Purchaser and Seller.

(p) Counterparts: This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts, each of which
shall be deemed an original and all of which combined shall constitute one and the same
instrument. Any facsimile signature hereon shall be given the same force and effect as an
original signature.

(q) Acceptance Deadline: This offer shall be deemed null and void unless Seller has signed
below and provided a copy of its acceptance to Purchaser within two (2) business days after
Purchaser’s signature below.

(r) Closing Statement: On the Closing Date, Purchaser and Seller shall each deliver to the other a
closing statement reflecting payment of the Purchase Price and the applicable prorations, in
form reasonably satisfactory to both Purchaser and Seller and their respective counsel.

(s) Intentionally Omitted.

(t) Intentionally Omitted.

(u) Documents to be Produced: Seller shall provide the Purchaser, within 2 days of acceptance
of this Agreement, copies of all surveys, leases, engineering studies, environmental reports,
soil tests and borings, building engineering plans, historical plans and data, and other related
studies and/or correspondence particular to the subject Property. Closing shall be extended
one day for each day after Seller does not provide said documents beyond the 10 day period.

12. It is hereby acknowledged that neither Purchaser, nor its assignee, assumes any responsibility or
liability that Seller may have as a result of the environmental condition of the Property that may be
imposed upon Seller by any state, federal or local law, rule, regulation or ordinance (including, but
without limitation, any requirement to report, assess, investigate, abate and/or remediate the subject
property), and Seller shall be responsible for compliance with any such requirement.



13. Additional Obligations of Seller and Purchaser.

.
Upon the effective date of this Agreement, Buyer shall be responsible for the routine
maintenance of the property which shall include lawn mowing, if any, landscaping/weed
control, and snow removal of the public walk ways. Buyer shall not be responsible for the
maintenance of any structures on the premises, except that debris or pieces of the structure
fall off or are blown of the building, Buyer shall remove so they do not cause harm or
liability to Seller or Buyer.

Buyer shall have the right to place signage on the property, advertising and marketing the
site for redevelopment, upon execution of this agreement

This Agreement, as well as any condition to close, shall be contingent upon the Premises
being properly zoned for Buyer’s intended use. The Premises shall have all necessary
approvals and permits from any and all governmental agencies necessary for Buyer’s
intended use. Seller shall assist Buyer with all approvals necessary, which shall be at
Buyer’s cost and expense.

Seller and Buyer shall obtain any and all possible incentives and or grants available for the
remediation and clean-up of the environmental contamination that may be present on the
Premises, as well as any other conditions that may exist on the Premises that would be
included as eligible activities for reimbursement under blighted property standards. Seller
agrees to that in order for this Agreement to move to a closing, they will support a county
managed Brownfield TIF plan.

Seller and Buyer shall use their best efforts to remove any structures from the property as
soon as possible after the effective date of this agreement. Buyer shall not incur any hard
costs for such removal, until such time as financing may become available. If Seller has
funds, or can obtain funds to remove the structure, it may at its sole cost and expense. In
the event Seller or Buyer cannot feasibly remove the structures, Buyer shall paint the
structures.

14. Construction. Purchaser agrees to make a good faith effort to use a local work force or to have its
general contractor use a local work force for the majority of the construction of the redevelopment of the
Property so long as the use of local work force is economically and financially feasible and where there is a
qualified subcontractor or personnel. As used in this paragraph local work force means construction
business that are based in within a 30-mile radius of the Property.

15. Following the execution of this agreement, Purchaser shall engage an environmental consultant, a
soils engineer and a land surveyor of its choice to perform post closing due diligence items such as a Phase
I ESA, further environmental investigation if recommended by the environmental consultant, a
geotechnical investigation to determine the suitability of the site for development, and an ALTA Survey
(the “Post Closing Investigation”). In the event that Purchaser concludes, based upon the Post Closing
Investigation that development of the Property is cost prohibitive, , or that the survey reveals
encroachments or impediments to development, then Purchaser may elect to terminate this agreement.



The parties have executed this Buy/Sell Agreement effective on the date and year first above written,
and Purchaser and Seller acknowledge receipt of an executed copy of this Agreement.

SELLER: Ingham County Land Bank Fast Track Authority

________________________________________________
By: Eric Schertzing
Its: Chairperson

Dated: December ____, 2010

PURCHASER: Gillespie Development, LLC
a Michigan limited liability company

________________________________________________
By: Patrick Gillespie
Its: Member
Dated: __________, ____, 2012

















































































Inventory Acquired Rental or Garden Demolished Sold Current Inventory

as of 12/31/2011 as of 7/31/2012 as of 7/31/2012 as of 7/31/2012 as of 7/31/2012

Structures 367 0 (12) (86) (33) 236
Rentals 13 0 12 0 0 25
Gardens 42 0 13 0 0 55
Vacant Land 364 0 (13) 86 (5) 432
Commercial 13 0 0 0 (3) 10

TOTAL(S) 799 0 24 86 (41) 758

Total Line of Credit $5,000,000.00
Obligated 3,475,000.00

Available Balance 1,525,000.00

INGHAM COUNTY LAND BANK

ACTIVITY REPORT

July 31, 2012

Approved Line of Credit

as of 7/31/2012

(DASHBOARD)





Participating ICLB 2010 Gardens 14

Participating ICLB 2011 Gardens 19

New 2012 Gardens 15

Total Gardens 48

Total ICLB Parcels 67

GLFB GP Affiliated Gardens 15

Vacant/Possible Garden Space 350

People Served
300 households = 700
people

7/23/2012 Garden Program Update

Totals



07/30/2012 CHECK REGISTER FOR INGHAM COUNTY LAND BANK
CHECK DATE FROM 07/01/2012 - 07/31/2012

Check Date Check Vendor Name Amount

Bank GEN
07/05/2012 7962 CITY OF LANSING 215.00
07/05/2012 7963 CITY OF LANSING 65.00
07/06/2012 7964 CONSUMERS ENERGY 145.23
07/10/2012 7965 BOARD OF WATER & LIGHT 662.94
07/10/2012 7966 BOARD OF WATER & LIGHT 573.59
07/10/2012 7967 BOARD OF WATER & LIGHT 131.70
07/10/2012 7968 CONSUMERS ENERGY 127.92
07/10/2012 7969 DELHI TOWNSHIP 0.14
07/10/2012 7970 CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF LANSING 16.40
07/10/2012 7971 AUTO-OWNERS INSURANCE 384.09
07/10/2012 7972 RBK BUILDING MATERIALS 1,002.00
07/10/2012 7973 PAM BLAIR 120.00
07/10/2012 7974 RIZZI DESIGNS 297.35
07/10/2012 7975 EDEN GLEN CONDO ASSOCIATION 6,380.00
07/10/2012 7976 MOLENAAR & ASSOCIATES, INC 300.00
07/10/2012 7977 ETC 415.00
07/10/2012 7978 RED CEDAR CONSULTING, LLC 1,039.50
07/10/2012 7979 KEBS, INC. 200.00
07/10/2012 7980 DISCOUNT CARPET WAREHOUSE 3,615.35
07/10/2012 7981 FOX BROTHERS COMPANY 79.95
07/10/2012 7982 AMERICAN RENTALS INC. 125.00
07/10/2012 7983 THE SHERWIN-WILLIAMS CO. 380.50
07/10/2012 7984 AD'VANTAGE CLEANING 683.60
07/10/2012 7985 J & M HAULING 850.00
07/10/2012 7986 LANE'S REPAIR 131.03
07/10/2012 7987 MARES FLOOR REFINISHING 1,017.50
07/10/2012 7988 WISEMAN TREE EXPERTS 600.00
07/10/2012 7989 NORSHORE BUILDING INC 12,606.00
07/10/2012 7990 J. F. SHEWCHUCK CONSTRUCTION 17,505.00
07/10/2012 7991 GREGORY LEE MCKAY LLC 450.00
07/10/2012 7992 WES STEFFEN PLUMBING 2,250.00
07/10/2012 7993 DON PLANTZ CONCRETE 425.00
07/10/2012 7994 DICK CORTRIGHT 4,895.00
07/10/2012 7995 MICHIGAN PLUMBING 239.00
07/10/2012 7996 K&T ELECTRIC 2,624.50
07/10/2012 7997 KEHREN CONSTRUCTION, LLC 5,370.00
07/10/2012 7998 CITY OF LANSING 64,461.47
07/10/2012 7999 GRACE AT HOME 14,872.50
07/10/2012 8000 QUALIFIED CONSTRUCTION CORP 1,650.00 V
07/10/2012 8001 METRO DEVELOPMENT CORP. 9,725.85
07/10/2012 8002 CENTURY CONSTRUCTION 8,824.10
07/10/2012 8003 ALL STAR SNOW REMOVAL 1,485.00
07/10/2012 8004 FRITZY'S LAWN & SNOW 1,350.00
07/10/2012 8005 INTEGRITY LAWN MAINTENANCE 1,415.00
07/10/2012 8006 MOW MASTER 4,125.00
07/10/2012 8007 NORTHWEST INITIATIVE 2,960.00



07/10/2012 8008 SECOND CHANCE EMPLOYMENT 2,757.00
07/10/2012 8009 DENNIS GRAHAM 111.19
07/10/2012 8010 AMO INSPECTIONS & APPRAISALS 1,560.00
07/11/2012 8011 OCD CLEANING SERVICES LLC 1,350.00
07/13/2012 8012 J & M HAULING 7,300.00
07/18/2012 8013 GORDON FOOD SERVICE 162.00
07/18/2012 8014 ROSCOE CLARK 400.00
07/26/2012 8015 BOARD OF WATER & LIGHT 690.03
07/26/2012 8016 BOARD OF WATER & LIGHT 1,406.03
07/26/2012 8017 BOARD OF WATER & LIGHT 676.85
07/26/2012 8018 BOARD OF WATER & LIGHT 700.58
07/26/2012 8019 BOARD OF WATER & LIGHT 810.79
07/26/2012 8020 BOARD OF WATER & LIGHT 335.33
07/26/2012 8021 BOARD OF WATER & LIGHT 255.01
07/26/2012 8022 CONSUMERS ENERGY 309.65
07/26/2012 8023 CONSUMERS ENERGY 193.83
07/26/2012 8024 CONSUMERS ENERGY 152.71
07/26/2012 8025 CONSUMERS ENERGY 280.75
07/26/2012 8026 CONSUMERS ENERGY 192.89
07/26/2012 8027 CONSUMERS ENERGY 196.44
07/26/2012 8028 CONSUMERS ENERGY 92.08
07/26/2012 8029 CITY OF WILLIAMSTON 86.33
07/26/2012 8030 GANNETT MICHIGAN NEWSPAPERS 379.00
07/26/2012 8031 MICHGAN MUNICIPAL RISK MANAGEMENT 13,498.00
07/26/2012 8032 AMERICAN MODERN SELECT INSURANCE CO 755.00
07/26/2012 8033 HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICES 246.00
07/26/2012 8034 HSBC BUSINESS SOLUTIONS 1,841.00
07/26/2012 8035 DELHI TOWNSHIP 12.99
07/26/2012 8036 TOSHIBA FINANCIAL SERVICES 219.86
07/26/2012 8037 SPRINT 256.38
07/26/2012 8038 COMCAST 66.95
07/26/2012 8039 AT & T 304.03
07/26/2012 8040 SEARS COMMERCIAL ONE 4,710.00
07/26/2012 8041 H.C. BERGER COMPANY 141.09
07/26/2012 8042 DBI BUSINESS INTERIORS 135.18
07/26/2012 8043 SOUTH ST, LLC 500.00
07/26/2012 8044 COHL, STOKER & TOSKEY, P.C. 1,774.90
07/26/2012 8045 GREATER LANSING HOUSING COALITION 5,197.13
07/26/2012 8046 HASSELBRING CLARK CO 185.44
07/26/2012 8047 CITY PULSE 879.30
07/26/2012 8048 RIZZI DESIGNS 4,946.00
07/26/2012 8049 LANDLORDS OF MID-MICHIGAN 90.00
07/26/2012 8050 KELLER WILLIAMS REALTY 250.00
07/26/2012 8051 EASTSIDE NEIGHBORHOOD ORGANIZATION 110.00
07/26/2012 8052 SUE E BETCHER 200.00
07/26/2012 8053 AIR QUALITY CONTROL AGENCY 725.00
07/26/2012 8054 DAVIS GLASS & SCREEN 103.76
07/26/2012 8055 FIBERTEC ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES 108.00
07/26/2012 8056 WES STEFFEN PLUMBING 715.00
07/26/2012 8057 A-1 RENT-ALL STOP 442.69
07/26/2012 8058 KELLEY APPRAISAL COMPANY 600.00
07/26/2012 8059 ETC 735.00



07/26/2012 8060 SC SERVICES ENVIRONMENTAL 70,918.00
07/26/2012 8061 BWB CLEANING 1,389.40
07/26/2012 8062 COMMERCIAL CLEANING 831.60
07/26/2012 8063 KELLOGG'S PORCELAIN RESURFACING 900.00
07/26/2012 8064 WISEMAN TREE EXPERTS 2,610.00
07/26/2012 8065 STANDARD ELECTRIC COMPANY 21.06
07/26/2012 8066 GRANGER LANDSCAPE SUPPLY 10.00
07/26/2012 8067 FOX BROTHERS COMPANY 307.88
07/26/2012 8068 THE SHERWIN-WILLIAMS CO. 823.92
07/26/2012 8069 ROTO ROOTER 2,117.00
07/26/2012 8070 DISCOUNT CARPET WAREHOUSE 1,814.88
07/26/2012 8071 WOODWORKS & DESIGN CO. 1,538.00
07/26/2012 8072 DICK CORTRIGHT 4,672.50
07/26/2012 8073 BROOKSIDE INTERIORS LLC 523.00
07/26/2012 8074 GREGORY LEE MCKAY LLC 1,200.00
07/26/2012 8075 CENTURY CONSTRUCTION 8,564.00
07/26/2012 8076 J. F. SHEWCHUCK CONSTRUCTION 4,350.00
07/26/2012 8077 NORSHORE BUILDING INC 17,688.00
07/26/2012 8078 KEHREN CONSTRUCTION, LLC 1,975.00 V
07/26/2012 8079 KEHREN CONSTRUCTION, LLC 4,215.00
07/26/2012 8080 BG & SON HOME IMPROVEMENTS 6,400.00
07/26/2012 8081 HAZEN LUMBER, INC. 1,148.69
07/26/2012 8082 VET'S ACE HARDWARE 94.20
07/26/2012 8083 AMO INSPECTIONS & APPRAISALS 2,110.00
07/26/2012 8084 NORTHWEST INITIATIVE 1,648.00
07/26/2012 8085 SECOND CHANCE EMPLOYMENT 2,615.50
07/26/2012 8086 ALL STAR SNOW REMOVAL 2,940.00
07/26/2012 8087 MOW MASTER 3,465.00
07/26/2012 8088 FRITZY'S LAWN & SNOW 1,365.00
07/26/2012 8089 MCKISSIC CONSTRUCTION 7,785.00
07/26/2012 8090 ERIC SCHERTZING 1,232.58
07/26/2012 8091 JOSEPH G BONSALL 226.73
07/26/2012 8092 MANWELL MCCLINTON 87.25
07/26/2012 8093 LINDA SCHONBERG 98.79
07/26/2012 8094 INGHAM COUNTY TREASURER 13,789.72

GEN TOTALS:
Total of 133 Checks: 408,415.10
Less 2 Void Checks: 3,625.00
Total of 131 Disbursements: 404,790.10



07/30/2012 CHECK REGISTER FOR INGHAM COUNTY LAND BANK



INGHAM COUNTY LAND BANK AUTHORITY
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES & CHANGE IN NET ASSETS
JUNE 30, 2012

Assets
Cash $ 212,358.80
Payroll .41
Accounts Receivable 5,205.20
Land Contract Receivable 1,697,764.20
Land Contract Interest Receivable 54,558.25
Land Contract Escrow 18,985.89
Notes Receivable 180,000.00
Specific Tax Receivable 1,215.84
Specific Tax Receivable-Prior Year 940.67
OCOF Nonprofit Receivable 5,322.68
Ingham County Receivable-General 13,097.92
NSP1 Lansing City Receivable 11,130.93
Home Lansing City Receivable 85,902.64
Lansing City Receivable-General 17,627.71
NSP County Receivable 5,359.91
NSP2 MSHDA Receivable 120,174.00
Suspension Account (4,439.45)
Inventory 4,343,405.74
NSP2 Inventory 962,000.00

Total Assets $ 7,730,611.34

Liabilities
Accounts Payable 84,326.70
Notes Payable

PNC Bank 3,625,000.00
Due to Ingham County 1,106,188.08
Rental Deposit 8,632.00
Good Faith Deposits 9,000.00
Land Contract Escrow 15,799.30
NSP2 Deferred Revenue 962,000.00

Total Liabilities $5,810,946.08

Retained Earnings $1,680,304.76

Total Net Assets $ 239,360.50



STATE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES & CHANGE IN NET ASSETS
JUNE 30, 2012

Revenues

Property Sales $ 546,530.51
NSP2 MSHDA Adm. Fee Revenue 55,819.00
NSP2 MSHDA Revenue 2,388,627.43
NSP2 Program Income 878,171.90
NSP1 Lansing Revenue 29,198.52
NSP1 Lansing Re-investment Revenue 243,879.85
HOME Revenue 70,194.98
NSP County Revenue 817.78
Interest Income 104,261.42
Rental Income 52,804.17
Late Fee Revenue 1,517.77
Insurance Revenue 9,091.62
Miscellaneous Revenue 405.50
Revenue Transfer 400,000.00
Rental Deposit Forfeiture 600.00

Total Revenue $ 4,781,920.45

Operating Expenses
Cost of Land Sold 577,322.86
Supplies 5,389.20
Audit Fees 8,500.00
Communication 2,253.14
Security 243.68
Memberships 100.00
Rental 1,500.00
Equipment-Small Purchase 1,925.73
Postage 954.80
Media 12,520.17
Interior Staging 82.79
Auction Expense 5,000.00
Renovation Expense 330.00
Consultants 33,318.00
Bank Fees 865.08
Legal 5,464.70
Travel 3,212.59
Conferences 750.00
Software 2,093.99
Insurance 3,932.12
Payroll Reimbursement 114,855.83
Americorp 5,894.50

Operating Expenses (cont.)



Employer Tax Liability 7,614.25
Payroll Service 548.91
Workers Compensation 4,585.36
Utilities 763.46
Building Maintenance 4,189.25
Lawn & Snow 610.00
Land Contract Default 84,875.93
Interest Expense 27,769.70
Garden Program 12,580.76
Bike Share Program 2,440.00
Housing Counseling 900.00
Building Maintenance 1,891.01
HOME Lansing City 117,315.00
NSP1 Lansing City 126,008.55
NSP Ingham County 2,126.71
NSP II 2,482,320.22
NSP2 Program Income Expense 878,169.02
NSP III 1,342.64

Total Expense $ 4,542,559.95

Total Net Assets, end of period $ 239,360.50


